Public Document Pack

Annual Council
To All Members of the Annual Council
Wednesday, 12 May 2021
You are hereby summoned to attend the Meeting of the Annual Council of the Borough of
North Tyneside to be held in Beech Hall - The Parks, Howdon Road, North Shields
NE29 6TL at 6.00 pm on Thursday, 20 May 2021 for the transaction of the following
business.
Agenda
Item

Page(s)

1.

To Elect the Chair of the Council for the 2021/22 Municipal Year

2.

To Elect the Deputy Chair of the Council for the 2021/22 Municipal
Year

3.

Vote of thanks to retiring Chair

4.

Apologies

5.

To receive any Declarations of Interest and Notification of any
Dispensations Granted
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that
interest.
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation in relation to any
registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have been granted to
you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and receive information about
it. However, in order to enable the meeting to be held in a Covid-secure manner, places for
members of the public are limited. Please email democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk or
call 0191 643 5358 if you wish to attend or require further information.
North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the information you need.
We are able to provide our documents in alternative formats including Braille, audiotape, large
print and alternative languages.

Agenda
Item

Page(s)

6.

Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 18 March 2021
(previously circulated)

7.

Municipal Elections - 6 May 2021 - Return of Councillors

1-2

8.

Address by the Elected Mayor including Cabinet Composition and
Delegation Scheme

3-6

9.

Leaders of Political Groups
To receive verbal reports as to the appointment of leaders of the
individual political groups.

10.

Deputy Leaders of Political Groups
To receive verbal reports as to the appointment of deputy leaders of the
individual political groups.

11.

Annual Review of the Constitution

7 - 120

To consider proposed amendments to the Constitution and associated
documents.
12.

Annual Appointments 2021/22

121 - 136

To consider the appointment of Committees/Sub Committees; the
allocation of seats on Committees/Sub Committees to Political Groups;
the appointment of Chairs and Deputy Chairs of Committees/Sub
Committees; and the appointment of representatives to serve on
outside bodies that exercise non-executive functions for the 2021/22
Municipal Year.
13.

Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny 2020/21

137 - 150

To consider a summary report of the work undertaken by the various
scrutiny committees during 2020/21.
14.

Annual Report of Standards Committee 2020/21 and 2019/20
To consider a report which summarises the work undertaken by the
Standards Committee during 2020/21 and 2019/20.

15.

Chair's Announcements (if any)

16.

Mayor's Announcements (if any)

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

151 - 178

Agenda Item 7

North Tyneside Council
Report to Council
20 May 2021
Title: Return of Councillors Elected – Municipal Elections
6 May 2021
WARD

NAME

Battle Hill

Carl Johnson

Benton

Pat Oliver

Camperdown

Jim Allan

Chirton

Hannah Johnson and John Stirling

Collingwood

Debbie Cox

Cullercoats

Linda Arkley

Howdon

John Hunter

Killingworth

Gary Bell

Longbenton

Eddie Darke

Monkseaton North

Jane Shaw

Monkseaton South

Naomi Craven

Northumberland

Jim Montague

Preston

Liam Bones and Cath Davis

Riverside

Frank Lott

St Mary’s

Judith Wallace and George Westwater

Tynemouth

Christopher Johnston

Valley

Tommy Mulvenna

Wallsend

Gary Madden

Weetslade

Anthony McMullen

Whitley Bay

Sandra Graham

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Annual Council Meeting – 20 May 2021
Membership of the Cabinet and responsibility for functions
This document sets out the Cabinet membership, the portfolios of each member of the Cabinet
and their key areas of responsibility.
The Cabinet
The Cabinet will consist of 9 Councillors and the Elected Mayor, as shown below.
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Portfolio

Norma Redfearn

Elected Mayor

Key Areas of Responsibility
Overall Strategic Policy Direction
National and Regional Engagement
Leadership within the North of Tyne
Combined Authority
Devolution
Leadership of the North Tyneside
Strategic Partnership
Law and Democracy

Councillor Carl
Johnson

Deputy Mayor

Delivery and presentation of Strategic
Policy Direction
Regeneration and Economic
Development
Corporate Strategy (including Customer
Service and the Engie Partnership)
Planning and Strategic Transport
Delivery of the Investment Programme

Councillor Martin
Rankin

Cabinet Member
responsible for Finance
and Resources

Finance, ICT and HR
Audit, Assurance and Risk
Asset and Property Management
Procurement and Supply Chain
(including the Capita and Engie
Partnerships)
Delivery of the Investment Programme

Page 3

Cabinet Member

Cabinet Portfolio

Councillor Anthony
McMullen

Cabinet Member
responsible for Adult
Social Care

Key Areas of Responsibility
Adult Social Care and Safeguarding
Carers Champion
Older People’s Champion

Councillor Sarah Day

Councillor Karen
Clark

Cabinet Member
responsible for Culture,
Sport and Leisure

Culture, Tourism and Events

Cabinet Member
responsible for Public
Health and Wellbeing

Health and Wellbeing

Leisure and Sport

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and
Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Public Health
Tackling Inequalities

Councillor Steve Cox

Cabinet Member
responsible for Housing

Housing Strategy
Housing Management
Housing Investment
Affordable Homes Programme

Councillor Sandra
Graham

Cabinet Member
responsible for
Environment

A Green North Tyneside
Waste Management
Environmental and Local Transport
Services (including roads, pavements,
parking, and the Capita Partnership)
Cycling Champion

Councillor Carole
Burdis

Cabinet Member
responsible for Community
Safety and Public
Protection

Community Safety and Tackling AntiSocial Behaviour
Public Protection (including Capita
Partnership)
Emergency Planning and Business
Continuity

Councillor Peter
Earley

Cabinet Member
responsible for Children,
Young People and
Learning

Children, Young People and Learning
Safeguarding
Employment and Skills

Page 4

Delegation of Executive Decision Making to Cabinet Members
I have agreed to delegate the following decisions to Cabinet Members in 2021/22:
a) approving the Authority’s response to government consultation papers;
b) approval of service specific plans;
c) debt write off up to £50,000 in relation to Council Tax, Business Rates, Sundry Debts and
Housing Benefit Overpayments (Cabinet Member with responsibility for Finance and
Resources);
d) to approve responses to regional strategies that impact on the Borough;
e) to determine Traffic Regulation Orders where any objections are not withdrawn (Cabinet
Member with responsibility for Environment);
f) to consider any representations received in relation to the proposed construction of road
humps and thereafter determine if road humps should be installed (Cabinet Member with
responsibility for Environment);
g) to consider any representations received in relation to proposals to establish a pedestrian
crossing and thereafter determine if a pedestrian crossing should be established (Cabinet
Member with responsibility for Environment);
h) to approve any proposals directly related to the delivery of objectives in the approved Our
North Tyneside Plan;
i) to approve the Member Development Programme (Cabinet Member with responsibility for
for Finance and Resources);
j) to consider any applications received for discretionary relief for Council Tax or Business
Rates, considered only when exceptional circumstances apply, as set out in the Policy for
the awarding of local taxation discretionary relief (Cabinet Member with responsibility for
Finance and Resources);
k) debt write off between £3,000 and £50,000 in respect of current and former Council house
tenant arrears and write off of credit balances between £3,000 and £10,000 associated
with untraceable former tenants (Cabinet Member with responsibility for Housing); and
l) to approve the appointment of representatives to serve on those outside bodies that
exercise executive functions (Elected Mayor).
Executive decision making on other matters not listed above will, except in exceptional (urgent)
circumstances, be taken by Cabinet collectively.
Any decisions taken by Cabinet Members will have to comply with many of the same good
governance requirements that will apply to collective decision-making by Cabinet, namely:




Publication on the Forward Plan
Presentation of a written report to the Cabinet Member - the report to be in the same format as
current Cabinet reports including reference to legal and financial implications background
papers, etc.
Publication of a record of the decision and availability for call in within specific deadlines.

Norma Redfearn, Elected Mayor

20 May 2021

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

North Tyneside Council
Report to Council
20 May 2021
Title: Annual Review of the Constitution
Portfolio(s):

Elected Mayor

Report from Service
Area:

Cabinet Member(s):

N Redfearn

Law and Governance

Responsible Officer:

Bryn Roberts, Head of Law and
Governance

Wards affected:

All

(Tel: (0191)6435339)

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:
This report is the result of the annual review of the Constitution and associated
documents undertaken by the Monitoring Officer. The report contains recommendations
on proposed amendments to Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme to
ensure that they continue to be fit for purpose and provide a framework which ensures
the efficient discharge of the Authority’s business by allowing for decision making at the
appropriate level.
The Financial Regulations have been reviewed to reflect organisational changes,
changes in personnel and legislative changes that have occurred since the previous
version that was approved in 2013.
The key changes to the Officer Delegation Scheme comprise statutory duties to provide
support for people vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism through a local panel; and to
have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism; and a
new environmental protection enforcement duty in relation to plastic straws, cotton buds
and stirrers.

1.2

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that Council approve the proposed changes to the Financial
Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme set out in Appendix 1 to this report and refer
the approved changes to the Elected Mayor for her consent in accordance with Article 15
of the Constitution.

1.3

Forward Plan:
Twenty-eight days’ notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the
Forward Plan that was published on 19 April 2021.

Page 7

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
This report has no direct relevance to the Our North Tyneside Plan priorities.

1.5

Information:

1.5.1 In accordance with Article 16 of the Constitution, the Monitoring Officer has a key role in
reviewing the operation of the Constitution and in making recommendations to Council on
ways in which it could be amended to ensure that it achieves its purpose as set out in
Article 1.
1.5.2 In accordance with the established arrangements, any changes proposed to the
Constitution and its associated documents are considered by the Constitution Task
Group and then any changes approved by the Task Group are submitted to the Annual
Council meeting for formal approval.
1.5.3 As part of the current review the Senior Management Team and Members of the Council
were requested to submit any proposed amendments to the Constitution and associated
documents.
1.5.4 The Constitution Task Group has considered the proposed changes to the Financial
Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme that have been received for consideration as
part of the latest annual review, and those changes that have been approved by the Task
Group are attached as Appendix 1 to the report.
1.5.5 The Constitution and associated documents will continue to be kept under review and
updated to reflect any changes in the organisational structure of the Council or any
legislative changes. The Council has previously authorised the Head of Law and
Governance, in consultation with the Chair of the Constitution Task Group, to make such
changes when the power remains unaltered and these need not be reported to Council.
1.6

Decision options:
The following decision options are available for consideration by Council:
Option 1 - Accept all of the recommendations and proposals;
Option 2 - Make amendments to the recommendations; or
Option 3 - Reject some or all of the recommendations.
Option 1 is the recommended option.

1.7

Reasons for recommended option:

1.7.1 Option 1 is recommended for the following reasons:
1.7.2 The proposals presented to Council have been scrutinised by the Constitution Task
Group, which is the Authority’s consultative body for any changes to the Constitution and
its associated documents and are the recommendations of the Monitoring Officer, who
has a duty under Article 16 of the Constitution to monitor and review the Constitution.
1.8

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Proposed changes to the Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation
Scheme approved by the Constitution Task Group.

Page 8

1.9

Contact officers:
Bryn Roberts, Head of Law and Governance (Tel. 643 5339)
Dave Brown, Law and Governance (Tel: 643 5358)
Janice Gillespie, Head of Resources (Tel.6435701)

1.10

Background information:
The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this
report and are available at the office of the author:
North Tyneside Council’s Constitution, Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation
Scheme
Papers submitted to Constitution Task Group on 9 April 2021

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1

Finance and other resources
There are no financial implications arising from the proposed changes to the Financial
Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme that can not be absorbed within existing
budgets. Any printing costs of the revised documents will be met from existing budgets.

2.2

Legal
The annual review of the Constitution documents, including a review of the ‘local choice’
elements of the Policy Framework, is required by the Constitution. The changes that
have been proposed are necessary to enable the Authority to carry out its duties and
responsibilities in an appropriate and timely manner. The Head of Law and Governance
has been fully consulted in the drafting of this document and all proposed changes
comply with current legislation.

2.3

Any specific legal implications arising from the proposed changes to the Financial
Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in Appendix 1 to this report.
.
Consultation/community engagement
All Members of the Council and the Senior Management Team were invited to put
forward proposed changes to the Constitution documents.
The Constitution Task Group has considered the documentation in detail. Any specific
consultation/community engagement implications arising from the proposed changes to
the Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in Appendix 1 to
this report.

2.4

Human rights
The contents of the report comply with the Human Rights Act 1998.
Any specific human rights implications arising from the proposed changes to the
Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in Appendix 1 to this
report.

Page 9

2.5

Equalities and diversity
Copies of the Constitution documents in alternative formats and languages can be made
available upon request, in line with the Authority's Interpreting and Translation Policy.
Any specific equalities and diversity implications arising from the proposed changes to
the Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in Appendix 1 to
this report.

2.6

Risk management
To mitigate the risks associated with using out of date Financial Regulations and Officer
Delegation Scheme the proposed amendments set out in Appendix 1 to this report
should be approved.
Any specific risk management implications arising from the proposed changes to the
Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in Appendix 1 to this
report.

2.7

Crime and disorder
Any specific crime and disorder implications arising from the proposed changes to the
Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in Appendix 1 to this
report.

2.8

Environment and sustainability
Any specific environment and sustainability implications arising from the proposed
changes to the Financial Regulations and Officer Delegation Scheme are set out in
Appendix 1 to this report.
Officers and Members are encouraged to access the revised documents electronically to
minimise the number of paper copies produced.

PART 3 - SIGN OFF


Chief Executive

X



Head of Service

X



Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)

X



Chief Finance Officer

X



Monitoring Officer

X



Head of Corporate Strategy
and Customer Service

X

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

Page 64

Page 65

Page 66

Page 67

Page 68

Page 69

Page 70

Page 71

Page 72

Page 73

Page 74

Page 75

Page 76

Page 77

Page 78

Page 79

Page 80

Page 81

Page 82

Page 83

Page 84

Page 85

Page 86

Page 87

Page 88

Page 89

Page 90

Page 91

Page 92

Page 93

Page 94

Page 95

Page 96

Page 97

Page 98

Page 99

Page 100

Page 101

Page 102

Page 103

Page 104

Page 105

Page 106

Page 107

Page 108

Page 109

Page 110

Page 111

Page 112

Page 113

Page 114

Page 115

Page 116

Page 117

Page 118

Page 119

Page 120

Agenda Item 12

North Tyneside Council
Report to Council
20 May 2021
Title: Annual Appointments 2021/22

Portfolio(s):

Elected Mayor

Report from Service
Area:

Cabinet Member(s):

N Redfearn

Law and Governance

Responsible Officer:

Bryn Roberts, Head of Law and
Governance

Wards affected:

All

Tel: (0191) 6435339

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:
The Council is requested to approve the appointment of committees/sub
committees, the appointment of chairs and deputy chairs of those committees/sub
committees, the allocation of seats to the political groups on those committees/sub
committees and the appointment of representatives to serve on outside bodies that
exercise non-executive functions for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

1.2

Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that Council:
1.

approve the appointment of committees/sub committees for the 2021/22
municipal year and determine the number of seats for each committee as
set out in paragraph 1.5.1.1 of the report;

2.

approve the allocation of seats on committees/sub committees to political
groups represented on the Council, and agree that the leaders of the
political groups inform the Head of Law and Governance of their respective
groups’ nominations of members to each committee/sub committee by 12
noon on Friday 21 May 2021;

3.

approve the appointment of chairs and deputy chairs of committees/sub
committees for the 2021/22 municipal year, as set out in paragraph 1.5.3.1
of the report;

Page 121

1.3

4.

approve the appointment of Mr Kevin Robinson and Mr Malcolm Wilkinson
as the two co-opted members on the Audit Committee for a further two year
period;

5.

note the appointment of Reverend Michael Vine as the Church of England
Diocesan representative and Stephen Fallon as the Roman Catholic
Diocesan representative on the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development
Committee; and consider and determine whether or not it is appropriate to
appoint any representative of other faiths/denominations to serve on the
Committee;

6.

note that the Elected Mayor will appoint at least one Councillor onto the
Health and Wellbeing Board for the 2021/22 Municipal Year; and

7.

approve the appointment of representatives to serve on outside bodies that
do not exercise executive functions for the 2021/22 municipal year, as set
out in Appendix 2 to this report.

Forward Plan:
Twenty-eight days’ notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the
Forward Plan that was published on 19 March 2021.

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
This report has no direct relevance to the Our North Tyneside Plan priorities.

1.5

Information:

1.5.1

Appointment of Committees/Sub Committees 2021/22

1.5.1.1

The Council is requested to appoint committees/sub committees for the 2021/22
municipal year as listed below.
Committee/Sub-Committee
Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development
Committee
Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing SubCommittee
Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee
Culture and Leisure Sub Committee
Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee
Environment Sub-Committee
Finance Sub-Committee
Housing Sub Committee
Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Audit Committee
Licensing Committee
Planning Committee
Regulation and Review Committee
Standards Committee
Health and Well Being Board

Page 122

No of Seats
15
12
12
12
12
12
7
12
7
9
(7 elected/2 independent)
15
11
18
9
See section 1.5.1.2

1.5.1.2

The Council established a Health and Wellbeing Board with effect from 1 April
2013 in accordance with the requirements of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.
As the Authority operates executive arrangements, the Elected Mayor may instead
of or in addition to making a nomination of at least one Councillor onto the Board,
be a member of the Board.
It is a matter for the Elected Mayor to nominate at least one Councillor onto the
Board. The Authority’s Constitution currently states that the membership of the
Board will comprise five councillors to be nominated by the Elected Mayor.
The rules relating to the allocation of committee seats according to the political
balance of the Council do not apply to the membership of the Board.

1.5.2

Allocation of Seats to Political Groups

1.5.2.1

The rules and requirements for securing political balance on Committees and SubCommittees appointed by Local Authorities where applicable are contained in the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government (Committees
and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 as amended.

1.5.2.2

The general effects of the balance rules on the Council are that it is under a duty
to:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

1.5.2.3

ensure that the membership of those bodies covered by the rules reflects
the political composition of the Council as far as practicable;
allocate seats on these bodies to the political groups in proportion to their
numerical strength on the Council as far as practicable;
accept a nomination made by the groups for the filling of seats allocated to
them;
review the allocation of seats to political groups at or as soon as practical
after the Annual Council Meeting and at certain other specified times.

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the following
principles to be applied in determining the allocation of committee seats to political
groups:
a)
b)

that not all the seats on the committee are allocated to the same political
group;
that the majority of the seats on the committee are allocated to a particular
political group if that group has a majority of the authority’s membership;
Having first satisfied a) and b) above then:

c)

the total of all seats on ordinary Committees shall be allocated to the groups
in proportion to their respective political strengths on the Council.
Once a), b) and c) above have been satisfied then:

d)

the number of seats on other affected bodies (Sub-Committees/other
bodies) shall also be allocated to the political groups in proportion of their
respective political strengths on the Council.

Page 123

1.5.2.4

Section 16(1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires that, where
a group has expressed its wishes as to the names of members to fill its allocated
seats, Council is under a duty to give effect to those group wishes.

1.5.2.5

The Council composition is 51 Labour members (including the Elected Mayor) and
9 Conservative members. There is one vacancy (Camperdown Ward).

1.5.2.6

Details of the allocation of seats to political groups on committees are attached at
Appendix 1.

1.5.2.7

Nomination of Committee Members
The leaders of the political groups are requested to inform the Head of Law and
Governance of their respective groups’ nominations of members to each of the
above committees and sub committees, and also the Constitution Task Group and
the Members Support Group, by 12 noon on Friday 21 May 2021.

1.5.3

Appointment of Chairs and Deputy Chairs of Committees/Sub Committees

1.5.3.1

The Council is requested to appoint Chairs and Deputy Chairs to its various
Committees/Sub Committees for the 2021/22 municipal year as set out below.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

Committee/Sub Committee
Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee
Adult Social Care, Health and
Wellbeing Sub-Committee
Children, Education and Skills
Sub-Committee
Culture and Leisure SubCommittee
Economic Prosperity SubCommittee
Environment Sub-Committee
Finance Sub-Committee
Housing Sub-Committee
Health and Wellbeing Board
Licensing Committee
Planning Committee
Regulation and Review
Committee
Standards Committee

Chair

Deputy Chair

1.5.3.2

In accordance with the Authority’s practice, the Elected Mayor is Chair of the
Appointments and Disciplinary Committee.

1.5.3.3

The Authority’s Constitution requires that the two co-opted members of the Audit
Committee shall fulfil the roles of Chair and Deputy Chair of the Committee. Mr
Kevin Robinson currently serves as Chair of the Committee, with Mr Malcolm
Wilkinson serving as Deputy Chair.

1.5.3.4

In accordance with the Audit Committee’s terms of reference, the terms of office of
Messrs Robinson and Wilkinson are due to expire in September 2021. The
appointment of co-opted members is a matter reserved to the full Council, on the

Page 124

recommendation of the Chief Executive (and Section 151 Officer if the post holder
is other than the Chief Executive). It is considered that Messrs Robinson and
Wilkinson are suitably skilled and experienced persons who are knowledgeable in
audit matters and have enhanced the work of the Audit Committee since their initial
appointment in September 2013. The Council is therefore requested to approve the
appointment of Mr Robinson and Mr Wilkinson for the next two-year period.
1.5.4

Church representatives on Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development
Committee

1.5.4.1

The Council is requested to note the appointment of Reverend Michael Vine as the
Church of England Diocesan representative and Stephen Fallon as the Roman
Catholic Diocesan representative on the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee. The Council is also requested to consider and determine
whether or not it is appropriate to appoint any representative of other
faiths/denominations to serve on the Committee.

1.5.5

Appointment of Representatives to serve on Outside Bodies exercising nonexecutive functions

1.5.5.1

The Council is requested to appoint representatives to serve on those outside
bodies which do not exercise executive functions for the 2021/22 municipal year,
as set out in Appendix 2 to this report.

1.6

Decision options:
The recommendations contained in this report are based on constitutional or
legislative requirements. If more than one nomination is received for any position,
a vote will be held with the nominee receiving the highest number of votes being
appointed to the position.

1.7

Reasons for recommended option:
To ensure that the Council makes the various appointments set out in the report in
accordance with the Authority’s Constitution and the relevant legislation and that
the necessary arrangements can be made to convene the meetings of the
Authority.

1.8

Appendices:
Appendix 1: Allocation of seats on Committees/Sub Committees to political groups
represented on the Council.
Appendix 2: List of Outside Bodies exercising non-executive functions.

1.9

Contact officers:
Dave Brown – Law and Governance
Claire Emmerson – Resources

Page 125

Tel: 643 5358
Tel. 643 8109

1.10

Background information:
The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of
this report and are available at the office of the author:
Local Government and Housing Act 1989
Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 and
amendment Regulations
The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
North Tyneside Council Constitution
Results of Local Elections 6 May 2021

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1

Finance and other resources
Allowances for the Committee/Sub Committee Chairs and Deputy Chairs are
included in the 2021/22 budget for Law and Governance.

2.2

Legal
This report fulfils the requirement of the Authority’s Constitution to appoint
committees/sub committees and representatives to outside bodies that exercise
non-executive functions at the Annual Council Meeting. Section 15 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 specifies the principles to be applied in
determining the allocation of committee seats to political groups.

2.3

Consultation/community engagement
The group leaders have been consulted on the allocation of seats on each
committee/sub-committee for the 2021-22 Municipal Year.

2.4

Human rights
The contents of the report are consistent with the requirements of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

2.5

Equalities and diversity
There are no equalities and diversity implications arising directly from this report.

2.6

Risk management
As the recommendations are procedural and a recognised part of the business of
the Annual Council meeting, no further risk assessment has been undertaken.

2.7

Crime and disorder
There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

2.8

Environment and sustainability
There are no direct environment and sustainability implications arising from this
report.

Page 126

PART 3 - SIGN OFF


Chief Executive

X



Head of Service

X



Mayor/Cabinet Member(s)

X



Chief Finance Officer

X



Monitoring Officer

X



Head of Corporate Strategy
and Customer Service

X

Page 127

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Allocation of Committee Seats 2021/22
Labour

Conservative

50*

9

total
seats

seats

seats

15
7
12

13
6
10

2
1
2

12

10

2

12
12
12
12
7
15
11
18
7
9
161

10
10
10
10
6
13
9
15
6
8
136

2
2
2
2
1
2
2
3
1
1
25

Council Composition

Committee

Page 129

Overview and Scrutiny
Finance Sub Committee
Economic Prosperity Sub Committee
Adult, Social Care, Health and Well Being Sub
Committee
Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee
Culture and Leisure Sub Committee
Environment Sub Committee
Housing Sub Committee
Audit Committee
Licensing Committee
Planning Committee
Regulation and Review Committee
Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Standards Committee
Totals

* Note: The Elected mayor is not included in this figure as she does not wish to take up any committee seats

This page is intentionally left blank

Appointments to Outside Bodies not exercising executive functions 2021/22
Body
Association of North East Councils
Resources Task and Finish Group
The Group has had a role for a number
of years in considering the implications
of Government finance policy, local
government finance settlements,
finance-related consultations and
responses, etc.

Page 131

British Destinations

Information

Appointments/
Appointments/
Nominations 2020/21 Nominations 2021/22

2 Representatives must be elected.
1.Councillor R Glindon
Annual Appointments
Substitute:
(NOTE: Can appoint substitutes. Do not Councillor D Cox
need to be specified)
Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

County Hall, Durham
as required

2. Councillor A
McMullen
Substitute:
Councillor N Craven

1 Representative. Need not be elected 1. 1. Councillor S Day
but it is recommended that they are.
Aims to work with members and national Substitutes are permitted.
partners to foster and provide the
Annual Appointment.
support that enables them to maintain,
develop and grow the social and
Meetings
economic contributions made by
Venue
Union Jack Club, London
tourism and the visitor economy to local Frequency Quarterly
communities and to the UK as a whole.
Time
Day
varies

1.
Substitute:

2.
Substitute:

1.

Body

Information

Local Government Association
Assembly

4 Representatives must be elected.
Annual Appointments.

The Association provides for
consultation as to the common interests
of member authorities and for the
discussion of matters relating to local
government.

Meetings
Venue Annual Conference and
London
Frequency
Twice yearly
Time
Day
1 Representative. Need not be elected.
Annual Appointment.

Newcastle Airport Consultative
Committee

Page 132

Aims to provide an effective forum to
discuss all matters concerning the
development and operation of the
airport which have an effect on its users
and the surrounding community
North East Migration Partnership
Members Forum

Meetings
Venue
Newcastle Airport
Frequency Quarterly
Time
2.30pm (1½ hours
duration)
Day
1 Representative.
Annual Appointment.

To provide a forum for feedback on
issues of significance that furthers the
objectives of the Migration Partnership
and its work and develop and foster
political interest and knowledge on
asylum and refugee issues.

Meetings
Venue
Various around the North
East region
Frequency Twice per year
Time
Day

Appointments/
Appointments/
Nominations 2020/21 Nominations 2021/22
1.Mrs N Redfearn,
Elected Mayor
2.Councillor C Johnson
3.Councillor Janet
Hunter
4.Councillor CA Burdis

1.
2.
3.
4.

1.Councillor M A Green 1.

1.Councillor S Cox

1.

Body

Information

North East Regional Employers
Organisation

3 Representatives must be elected.
Annual Appointments from July to July
An employee of (a) an organisation
Aim is to advise, support and represent
represented on the Trade Unions’ side
member authorities in human resource
of the Joint Council; or (b) a local or joint
management, management practice and authority or admitted body and whose
industrial relations.
conditions of employment are within the
scope of the Joint Council cannot be
appointed as an employers’
representative on the organisation.

Page 133

Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

North Tyneside Citizens Advice Bureau
To provide advice and information to the
people of North Tyneside.

Appointments/
Nominations 2021/22
1.
2.
3.

1.Councillor C Burdis

1.

Gateshead
Twice per year

1 Representative – the Cabinet Member
for Community Engagement/Community
and Voluntary Sector is appointed by
virtue of office.
Annual Appointment.
Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

Appointments/
Nominations 2020/21
1.Councillor CB Pickard
2. Councillor C Burdis
3.Councillor M
Thirlaway

Within North Tyneside
4 - 5 times per year
5.30pm

Body

Information

North Tyneside Veterans Committee

1 Elected Representative.

The Committee was established in 1997
and assists voluntary and community
groups with ceremonial events; the
protection of war memorials and offers
assistance on welfare matters to exservice people.

Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

Northumberland, Tyne & Wear and
North Durham Sustainability and
Transformation Plan Joint Health
Scrutiny Committee

3 Elected Representatives and 3
substitutes – must be non-executive
Members

Page 134

Meetings
Venue
Frequency

Percy Hedley School Governors Board

1 Representative. Need not be elected.
Annual Appointment. Substitutes are
permitted.

Charity providing services for children
and adults with cerebral palsy, sensory,
speech, language and communication
difficulties.

Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

Appointments/
Nominations 2021/22
1.

1.Councillor T
Mulvenna
2.Councillor K Clark
3.Councillor J Mole

1.
2.
3.

Quadrant, North Tyneside
Every 2 months
2.00pm
Monday

The Committee was established in 2017
to enable the respective local authorities
to jointly respond to any consultation in
relation to the STP and any associated
proposals for substantial developments
and variations to health services.

Time
Day

Appointments/
Nominations 2020/21
1.Councillor G Bell

Gateshead
Bi-monthly (initially) /
As and when
tbc
tbc

tbc
Monthly
6.00pm
Monday

Substitutes:
1.Councillor T Brady
2.Councillor E ParkerLeonard
3.Councillor J Kirwin

1.Councillor G Bell

Substitutes:
1.
2.
3.

1.

Body

Information

Standing Advisory Council on Religious
Education

4 Representatives must be elected.
Annual Appointments including
appointment of Chair of SACRE,
Statutory body which advises on matters previously made by the Council’s former
concerned with religious worship and on Education Committee in line with current
religious education to be given.
constitution of SACRE.

Appointments/
Nominations 2020/21
1. Councillor P Earley
(Chair)
2.Coucillor G Bell
3.Councillor M
Thirlaway
4.Councillor L Bell

Appointments/
Nominations 2021/22
1. (Chair)
2.
3.
4.

1. Councillor John
Hunter
2. Councillor G
Madden
3. Councillor T Brady
4. Councillor L Bell
5. Mrs M Nolan (nonelected)
6. Mr G Partis (nonelected)
7. Ms L Harvey (nonelected)
8. Mrs L Spillard
9. Ms M Heal (nonelected)
10. Councillor T
Mulvenna

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

Meetings
Venue
Quadrant
Frequency: Once or twice per term
Time
4.15pm
Day
Wallsend Charitable (Victor Mann) Trust

Page 135

Up to 10 Nominees. Need not be
elected. Three-year appointments.
To promote the welfare and comfort of
Current appointments expire May 2021.
and provide housing accommodation for Nominees should ideally be from the
the elderly poor inhabitants of the former area of the former Borough of Wallsend
Borough of Wallsend.
and have an interest in the welfare of
the elderly residents of that area.
Meetings
Venue
Tyneside
Frequency
required
Time
Day

Quadrant, North
AGM, as and when

APPOINTMENTS LAST FOR MORE THAN A YEAR – FOR
INFORMATION
Body

Cullercoats Education Trust
To promote the education,
including social and physical
training of persons resident in the
area comprising the ecclesiastical
parishes of St Paul and St George,
Cullercoats.

Information

2 Nominees. Need not be elected.
Substitutes are not permitted.

Page 136
Makes grants to young people to
help with academic and vocational
studies as well as those interested
in music and the arts and have
special talents in sport.

Appointments/
Nominations 2021/22

1.Councillor W Samuel
2.Councillor S Graham

1. Councillor W Samuel
2.Councillor S Graham

1. Councillor P Oliver
2. Councillor P Earley
3. Councillor Janet
Hunter
4. Councillor S Day

1. Councillor P Oliver
2. Councillor P Earley
3. Councillor Janet
Hunter
4. Councillor S Day

Four-year appointments.
Current appointments expire end of April
2023
The Council cannot change its nominees
once they have been accepted by the
organisation for the term of office.
Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

Kettlewell Education Foundation

Appointments/
Nominations 2020/21

#
Bi-annually
#
#

4 Representatives. Need not be Elected
Substitutes are not permitted.
Three-year appointments expire May 2023.
Meetings
Venue
Frequency
Time
Day

Quadrant, North Tyneside
Twice yearly
Afternoon
Varies

Agenda Item 13

North Tyneside Council
Report to Annual Council
20 May 2021
Title: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020/21
Portfolio(s):

Elected Mayor

Cabinet Member(s):

Report from Service Area:

Law and Governance

Responsible Officer:

Bryn Roberts,
Head of Law and Governance

Wards affected:

All

Norma Redfearn

Tel: (0191) 643 5339

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary:
The Authority’s Constitution requires the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report to be
received at the Annual Council Meeting each year. Accordingly, the Annual Overview and
Scrutiny Report for 2020/21, which provides a summary of work of the Authority’s
overview and scrutiny function over the previous year, is attached as Appendix A.

1.2

Recommendation(s):
Council is requested to note and receive the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report
2020/21.

1.3

Forward Plan:
This report first appeared on the Forward Plan that was published on 23 April 2021.

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
This report does not relate directly to any of the themes/programmes/projects in the
Our North Tyneside Plan.

1.5

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020/21

1.5.1 At the end of each municipal year a report is produced which summarises the activities
and performance of scrutiny over the last year and sets out the approach to the
development of the work programme for the year ahead.
1.5.2 Attached at Appendix A is the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020/21. The report
particularly highlights the involvement of scrutiny in policy development, and sets out

Page 137

some of the achievements of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee
and its sub-committees through the various pieces of work undertaken during the year.
The report also highlights the process in place for the development of the 2021/22 work
programme, including the involvement of stakeholders in order to develop a work
programme that will deliver a timely contribution to policy development across the
Council.
1.5.3 The report was considered and agreed by the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee on 15 March 2021.
1.5.4 Members are recommended to note and receive the report as attached.

1.6

Decision options:
The following decision options are available for consideration by Council:
Option 1
To note and receive the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2020/21.
Option 2
To refer the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2020/21 back to the Overview,
Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee for further consideration.
Option 1 is the recommended option.

1.7

Reasons for recommended option:
Option 1 is recommended for the following reason:
The Annual Report of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee for
2020/21 provides a record of the work of the Committee over the past year.

1.8

Appendices:
Appendix A - Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2020/21.

1.9

Contact officers:
Joanne Holmes – Democratic Services Officer – Tel: (0191) 643 5315

1.10

Background information:
The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this
report and are available at the office of the author:



North Tyneside Council Constitution
Reports and Minutes of Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee
and its sub committees 2020/21.

Page 138

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING
2.1 Finance and other resources
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
2.2 Legal
The report is submitted in accordance with the Authority’s constitutional requirement for
the Annual Overview and Scrutiny report to be received at the Annual Council meeting.
2.3 Consultation/community engagement
2.3.1 Internal Consultation
The Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee, at its meeting on 15 March
2021, considered and approved the Annual Report and referred it to this Annual Council
meeting.
2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement
There has been no external consultation in relation to the Annual Report as it relates to
the internal governance of the Authority.
2.4 Human rights
There are no human rights issues arising from this report.
2.5 Equalities and diversity
There are no equalities and diversity issues arising from this report.
2.6 Risk management
There are no risk management issues arising from this report.
2.7 Crime and disorder
There are no crime and disorder issues arising from this report.
2.8 Environment and sustainability
There are no environment and sustainability issues arising from this report.

Page 139

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview and Scrutiny
Annual Report 2020-21

Date: March 2021
Author: Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee

Page 141

Introduction
Welcome to the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020-21
This report provides a summary of the work of Overview and Scrutiny during 2020-21.
This has not been a normal year for anyone, and the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic
on the work of local authorities and the implications for all local authority decision makers
has been dramatic.
Scrutiny members, along with all members and officers of the authority, have had to
quickly adapt to new ways of working, including a move to virtual and live-streamed
meetings.
Over the year, Scrutiny has played an important role in scrutinising the response of the
local authority to the pandemic, as well as reflecting the views of local residents in relation
to the public health crisis and the continued provision of essential services across the
borough.
For practical reasons scrutiny has been taken forward through both formal and informal
routes. Scrutiny members have worked to maintain oversight of the work of the local
authority, while wishing to avoid unnecessary additional burdens being placed on officers,
both inside and outside of the authority, who are already dealing with unprecedented
challenges arising from the pandemic.
It was agreed in early summer 2020 that scrutiny sub-committees would resume meetings
on an informal basis, to allow officers and Members to acclimatise to the new environment
of remote virtual meetings.
The Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee and the Finance Subcommittee were the first to begin holding formal live-streamed virtual meetings. Towards
the end of 2020 all scrutiny committees had begun holding virtual live-streamed meetings.
This report provides an overview of the work of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee, and the sub-committees over this time. The report also sets out
the process for identifying priorities and developing the 2021-22 work programme going
forward.

Page 142

The role of Overview and Scrutiny
The role of overview and scrutiny is to provide a ‘critical friend’ challenge to the Cabinet
(and other decision makers), whilst also assisting in the development of key policies and
plans.
Over recent years there has been an emphasis on promoting and developing the policy
development role of overview and scrutiny. Throughout 2020-21 this has not been the
main priority of scrutiny, although it has been possible to continue with some policy
reviews carried forward from 2019-20.
During 2020-21 the scrutiny committees have aimed to provide a supportive role with a
focus on helping the Council to respond to the pandemic and ensuring the needs of
residents are met at this difficult time.

Update from the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee
Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee continued to fulfil its planned work
programme during the past year. Due to the challenges that arose from the effects of the
Covid-19 pandemic its first programmed meeting for June was delayed till August to
ensure arrangements to conduct meetings virtually live streamed to the public were in
place.
The main concern at the first meeting was to understand the activity to move through the
Pandemic Recovery Framework and the Committee requested and received a
comprehensive update from the lead officers responsible, including the Director of Public
Health.
It has continued to receive regular programmed performance of the Efficiency Savings
Programme 2020/21, the Technical Services Partnership with Capita and the Our North
Tyneside Plan.
Engagement with the Executive is important, and the Committee has continued its custom
to seek the attendance of Cabinet Members to its meetings where items within their
portfolio are discussed. The relationship with the executive and scrutiny works well in this
respect and Cabinet Members are regular attendees. This includes the Elected Mayor who
attended the January 2021 meeting to present her Annual Report.
In line with the Authority’s Policy Framework the Committee has continued to receive and
provide a scrutiny insight in this respect and has considered the refreshed Children and
Young People’s Plan for the Borough covering the period 2021-2025.

Page 143

Overview, Scrutiny & Policy Development Committee: Budget Scrutiny
The Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee again this year established a
Budget Sub-group to conduct its important role of being a critical friend to Cabinet and
providing challenge to the budget.
The membership of the Budget Sub-group was opened to non-executive members of the
Council and ten members (20%) were involved over the three meetings that took place.
The Sub-group produced a report and conclusions which were subsequently reported to
the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee and Cabinet as part of the
budget-setting process.

Overview, Scrutiny & Policy Development Committee: Review of the Engie
Partnership
Overview, Scrutiny & Policy Development Committee established a sub-group to
undertake a review of the partnership with Engie and the delivery of the contract which
covers services ICT, Finance, Human Resources, Revenue & Benefits and Customer
Services. Unfortunately, this work had to be deferred due to the pandemic early in 2020.
However, due to its importance, it was restarted in December 2020 and a number of
meetings were undertaken throughout January- March, with the aim to report the findings
of the review to the Overview, Policy and Development Committee at its March 2021
meeting, before submission to Cabinet.

Page 144

Update from the Scrutiny Sub-committees
Finance Sub-committee
The Finance Sub-committee has continued to examine the Council’s budget monitoring
position on a regular basis. The Sub-committee made the switch to having virtual livestreamed meeting and held meetings to the agreed meeting timetable for 2020/21, which
will continue into the future.
The meetings involved monitoring the forecast outturn positions for the General Fund, the
Housing Revenue Account and the Investment Plan. It continued to receive update
information of the effects of Welfare Reform, the effects of Covid-19 and continued to
request updates to other budgetary themes where it deems appropriate.
The Sub-group also continued to review the red risks associated with the Business and
Technical Partnerships.

Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Subcommittee
Over the summer and autumn, the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Subcommittee met virtually on an informal basis. The sub-committee received information
from Council officers on the Council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic and plans for
the recovery period, including public health and infection control, support for vulnerable
people, and support for the adult social care sector. The sub-committee has continued to
receive updates on public health and adult social care on a regular basis.
The Sub-committee met with the Chief Executive of Northumbria Healthcare NHS Trust to
find out about the Trust’s experience of the first wave of the pandemic and plans and
preparations for recovery. The Sub-committee has also met with representatives of the
CCG to discuss the contract with Livi to provide additional virtual GP appointments.
The Sub-committee have been able to move to virtual live-streamed meeting and will
continue to meet on a regular basis for the remainder of the municipal year.
Adult Social Care Sub-group – Review of Domiciliary/Home Care Provision
A Sub-group was established in 2019-20 to review Domiciliary/Home Care in the borough,
including the role of the Council in commissioning and facilitating good quality home care
services. The sub-group had drawn up a scope for the review and had begun to collect
information. Unfortunately this review has been on hold since March 2020 as Members
did not feel it was appropriate to continue with the review during the pandemic, given their

Page 145

wish to involve home care providers in the review. Work on this review will be reinstated in
due course.
Northumbria Healthcare Foundation Trust: Annual Quality Account – The Subcommittee welcomed the opportunity to submit a statement for inclusion in the published
annual quality account covering views on the Trust’s performance over the year as set out
in the Quality Account and the priorities identified by the Trust for 2019-20.

Economic Prosperity Sub-committee
In early September members of the sub-committee met informally with officers to receive a
briefing on the “Our Economy” theme within the Council’s Covid-19 Recovery Plan and to
formulate a work programme which would complement the plan. Subsequently members:
a) examined in more detail the transport theme of the Covid-19 Recovery Plan including:
i. the Council’s activities to re-allocate road space for use by pedestrians and
cyclists and its impact on the local economy;
ii. the proposed projects to be funded by Tranche 2 of the Emergency Active Travel
Fund; and
iii. the impact of Covid-19 on public transport services.
b) met with representatives from the commercial property sector to discuss the impact of
Covid-19 on the retail and leisure property market and the future regeneration of town
centres;
c) met with the Cabinet Member with responsibility for regeneration to examine the
Council’s Ambition for its town centres. Members paid particular attention to the North
Shields Masterplan and the outcomes from the public consultation on the plan; and
d) examined the most recent employment and skills data, policy announcements, progress
and challenges resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic.
Members of the sub-committee were also briefed on the proposed North East Transport
Plan and were invited to share their views on the draft Plan.

Housing Sub-committee
The Housing Sub-committee has spent most of its time focused on the response from the
Housing Service to the Covid-19 pandemic, looking specifically at the stages of recovery,
the current position and the impact on various areas of the service. Members were
informed of the level of repairs and gas safety checks that were completed during

Page 146

lockdown and new working practices adopted that focussed on tenant and staff
safety. Discussions were held around the work undertaken to identify rough sleepers and
securing accommodation.
Following the initial briefing on the response, the sub-committee looked further into the
impact of Covid-19 on homelessness and the provision for current and future support.
This focused on the funding available, increases in dispersed accommodation, the
operation of the officer team and keeping up-to-date with the latest guidance, winter
planning and changes that had been implemented to provide support where restrictions
meant certain services could no longer operate as they did before the pandemic.
The sub-committee also looked closely at the financial impact of the pandemic on the
Housing Service and the various support mechanisms that had been put in place to
support tenants.
At its final meeting of the municipal year, the sub-committee will look at the impact of the
pandemic on the Empty Homes Standard and look at the delivery of the Affordable Homes
Programme.
Looking ahead to next year, Housing sub-committee will continue its role in considering
matters relating to crime and disorder.

Environment Sub-committee
The Environment Sub Committee has given consideration to the annual report of the
Newcastle and North Tyneside Joint Biodiversity Action Plan and examined the delivery of
the action plan in relation to the various schemes in North Tyneside. Members received
updates on the activities of some of the various “friends of” groups which operate within
areas of North Tyneside including the Friends of Brierdene, the Friends of Holywell Dene
and St Mary’s Island Wetland Conservation Group.
In addition, the Sub Committee has examined the major improvement works which had
been undertaken in the Killingworth Lake area to increase biodiversity along with works in
Northumberland Park and the Rising Sub Country Park. Members also examined the
works undertaken with developers to maintain and improve biodiversity of the various
development sites across the borough as part of the planning process.

Page 147

Culture and Leisure Sub-committee
The Culture and Leisure Sub-Committee met virtually on an informal basis in October and
December 2020 and March 2021 when the work programme focused mainly on the
themes in the Authority’s Covid-19 Recovery Plan.
At the October 2020 meeting the Sub-Committee received reports on the impact of Covid19 upon the Authority’s Cultural and Sport & Leisure Services and the challenges for
service recovery in line with government guidance. The reports examined the approach to
recovery of the facilities closed and events cancelled for public use from March 2020 and
the changed Government guidance from July 2020; facilities that remained open for
business critical activities only, mainly public health and social care provision to support
the most vulnerable, and other facilities and events which had been permitted to re-open
under strictly controlled conditions. The Sub-Committee also considered a report on the
North Tyneside Draft Allotment Strategy 2020-30 as part of a wider consultation exercise
with all Ward councillors, which examined the proposed approach to the management and
investment into the allotment service.
At the meeting in December 2020 the Sub-Committee received an update on the services
closed for other than limited public use for a second period of lockdown from November,
with activity resuming in December 2020 under Tier 3 restrictions. All activities and
facilities remained under review and modified if necessary, according to national guidance.
The Sub-Committee also considered a report relating to the North of Tyne Combined
Authority (NTCA) /Covid-19 Cultural Services Recovery Plan, which provided an overview
of plans agreed by the North of Tyne Combined Authority (NTCA) to promote culture and
tourism activities across the three Council areas.
At the March 2021 meeting the Sub-Committee received a further update on the cultural
and sport & leisure services recovery plan following the Government’s announcement in
February 2021. The Sub-Committee also considered a report on the main aims of the new
10-year Sport England Strategy ‘Uniting the Movement’, which will work to get the nation
on its feet through a combination of targeted investment, innovation and the use of new
technologies. In addition, much of the focus on the new strategy is on targeted
interventions and engagement work with those groups and communities where activity is
lowest.
The Sub-Committee also received an update report in relation the North Tyneside Draft
Allotment Strategy 2020-30 on the outcome of a review of allotment provision across the
borough and agreed new sites which will be considered as part of any current (where
appropriate) or future development contributions identified for allotment provision.

Page 148

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee
In September and November 2020 the Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee met
virtually on an informal basis and the work programme themes complemented the
themes in the Council’s Covid-19 Recovery Plan.
At the September 2020 meeting the Sub-Committee received an update on the extent of
Local Authority support available to schools in managing their response to COVID 19 and
the plethora of government guidance. The Report examined the challenges faced by
schools as they identified and tackled the impact of extended school closure on pupils’
wellbeing and academic achievement and also covered information on the opening of
schools at the beginning of September 2020, managing local outbreaks of Covid 19,
Blended Learning, Achievement, Reading, Careers advice and guidance, Mental Health
and Wellbeing, Safeguarding and the Education Strategy – Ambition for Education. The
Sub-Committee also considered a report on the response of North Tyneside Council
Children’s Services Early Help and Social Care services to the need to work differently
during the Covid-19 pandemic whilst maintaining the highest standards of safeguarding
practice.
At the meeting in November 2020 the Sub-Committee received an update on the support
for Children with Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) during the Covid-19
Pandemic which summarised the amendments to SEND legislation and Government
guidance, and the Authority’s responses to these changes and support available to
children, young people and their families during this time.
The Sub-Committee also considered a report relating to the effectiveness of transition
planning for Children with Special Education Needs and/or Disabilities to Adult Services.
An update was also received on the impact on staff in Early Help and Social Care services
and the support for staff as key workers during the Covid-19 Pandemic.
In January 2021 the Sub-Committee held a formal meeting - live streamed on YouTube
and received an update on the work undertaken by the Authority and its partners to
prevent and protect young people from sexual exploitation and an overview of Corporate
Parenting in the Covid-19 Pandemic.
Early Intervention Children’s Readiness for School Sub-Group
The Children’s Readiness for School in-depth investigation was completed on the basis of
evidence gathered pre Covid-19. The report makes a number of recommendations around
consulting further with parents, schools and early years providers to identify the scope of
any problems with children being ready for school and to improve access to support for
parents and early years providers. The Report was considered at the January 2021 SubCommittee Meeting and referred to the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development
Committee on 2 February 2021 who referred the recommendations to Cabinet on 22

Page 149

February 2021. The Cabinet will provide their response to the recommendations set out in
the report at a future meeting of Cabinet.

Chairs and Deputy Chairs
The Chairs and Deputy Chairs of all the Committees/Sub-committee have met once this
year to consider the work of the scrutiny committees and how this should be taken
forward under the circumstances of the pandemic. They will meet again in the near future
to consider the work programme for the year ahead.

Future Scrutiny
Preparation for the development of the 2021-22 overview and scrutiny work programmes
is under consideration. The Chairs and Deputy Chairs will be discussing possible areas
for review in order to prioritise topics for scrutiny during 2021-22, but the focus is likely to
remain on the impact of the pandemic and the recovery of Council services. Elected
Members, senior officers and the public will be encouraged to suggest topics that scrutiny
could usefully investigate.
All suggestions received will be considered by individual sub-committees at the beginning
of the new municipal year in order to develop work programmes for the year ahead. Some
reviews will carry forward from this and previous years. When prioritising topics,
consideration will be given to whether the issue is timely and whether there is potential to
have a positive impact on Council policy.

Page 150

Agenda Item 14

North Tyneside Council
Report to Annual Council
20 May 2021
Title: Standards Committee Annual Report: 2019-20 and 2020-21
Portfolio(s):

Elected Mayor

Cabinet Member(s):

Report from Service
Area:

Law and Governance

Responsible Officer:

Bryn Roberts,
Head of Law and Governance

Wards affected:

All

Mrs N Redfearn

Tel: (0191) 643 5339

PART 1
1.1

Executive Summary
To submit the Standards Committee’s Annual Reports for 2020-21 and 2019-20.

1.2

Recommendation(s)
Council is requested to note and receive the Standards Committee’s Annual Report for
2020-21 and 2019-20.

1.3

Forward Plan
This report first appeared on the Forward Plan that was published on 23 April 2021.

1.4

Council Plan and Policy Framework
This report does not relate directly to any of the themes/programmes/projects in the
Our North Tyneside Plan.

1.5

Standards Committee Annual Report 2020-21

1.5.1 The Standards Committee is responsible for:
 the promotion of ethical standards within the Authority,
 helping to secure adherence to the Members’ Code of Conduct,
 monitoring the operation of the Code within North Tyneside,
 promoting and reviewing the Whistleblowing Policy for Members,
 reviewing complaints made against Members in respect of alleged breaches of
the Members’ Code of Conduct and conducting hearings following investigation;
and

Page 151



determining complaints made against Councillors in respect of alleged breaches
of the Code of Conduct.

The Standards Committee Annual Report 2020-21 is attached at Appendix 1.
The report provides further background information regarding the Standards Committee
and sets out the work undertaken by the Committee and its Sub-Committee over the
municipal year.
The Committee will consider its work programme for the new municipal year 2021-22 at
its first meeting of the new municipal year in June 2021.

1.6

Standards Committee Annual Reports 2019-20
Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the Standards Committee Annual Report 2019-20
could not be submitted to Annual Council in May 2020. The report is therefore being
submitted to this meeting, alongside the Standards Committee Annual Report 2020-21.

1.7

Decision options
The following decision options are available for consideration by Council:
Option 1
To note and receive the Annual Reports of the Standards Committee for 2020/21 and
2019/20.
Option 2
To refer the Annual Report of the Standards Committee for 2020/21 and/or 2019/20 back
to the Standards Committee for further consideration.
Option 1 is the recommended option.

1.8

Reasons for recommended option
Option 1 is recommended for the following reason:
The Annual Reports of the Standards Committee for 2020/21 and 2019/20 provide a
record of the work of the Standards Committee over the past two years.

1.9

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Standards Committee Annual Report 2020/21
Appendix 2 - Standards Committee Annual Report 2019/20.

1.10

Contact officers
John Barton – Lawyer, Law and Governance – Tel: (0191) 643 5354
Joanne Holmes – Democratic Services Officer – Tel: (0191) 643 5315
Claire Emmerson – Senior Manager Financial Strategy and Planning – Tel: (0191) 643
8109.

Page 152

1.8 Background information
The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this
report and are available at the office of the author:
The Localism Act 2011.
The Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members.
PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING

2.1

Finance and other resources
There are no financial implications arising from this report.

2.2

Legal
The Localism Act 2011 places a statutory duty on the Authority to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct by its elected and co-opted Members and to appoint
Independent Persons.

2.3

Consultation/community engagement

2.3.1

Internal Consultation
The Standards Committee at its meeting on 8 April 2021 considered and approved the
Annual Report and referred it to this Council meeting.

2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement
There has been no external consultation in relation to the Annual Report as it relates to
the internal governance of the Authority.
2.4

Human rights
There are no human rights issues arising from this report.

2.5

Equalities and diversity
There are no equalities and diversity issues arising from this report.

2.6

Risk management
There are no risk management issues arising from this report.

2.7

Crime and disorder
There are no crime and disorder issues arising from this report.

Page 153

2.8

Environment and sustainability
There are no environment and sustainability issues arising from this report.

PART 3 - SIGN OFF


Chief Executive

X



Head of Service

X



Chief Finance Officer

X



Monitoring Officer

X



Head of Corporate Strategy
and Customer Service

X

Page 154

Appendix 1

Standards Committee

Annual Report
2020-21

Page 155

Chair’s Foreword
As Chair of the Standards Committee, I am pleased to present the Committee’s Annual
Report, which outlines the work undertaken by the Committee in 2020/21.
The Standards Committee remains committed to working with and supporting Members of
the Council to ensure that they respect the Code of Conduct and uphold the standards
expected of those in public life.
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, there has been a reduction in the work of the Committee
over the last municipal year, with no meetings held from March 2020 over the summer
period. The Committee began to meet on a virtual basis from November 2020 and have
continued to work closely with the Authority’s Monitoring Officer to ensure that the principles
of good governance and ethical standards remain central to the business of the Authority
and instil public confidence in those elected to public office.
I would like to thank all of the Committee Members, the Independent Persons and Officers
who I have worked with over this last year in relation to my role of Chair of the Standards
Committee and look forward to productive year ahead.

Councillor M Rankin
Chair of the Standards Committee

Page 156

1. Standards Committee
1.

Introduction
At the end of each municipal year the Standards Committee submits for the consideration of
Council an annual report summarising the work the Committee has carried out during the
previous year.
This report comprises the Annual Review covering the period April 2020 to March 2021,
together with background information regarding the standards regime established within
North Tyneside Council. All references to 2020/21 in the report refer to this time period.

2.

Background Information
The Code of Conduct for Elected Members and Co-opted Members (‘the Code’ or ‘The
Code of Conduct’)
The Localism Act 2011 requires the Authority to have a Code of Conduct. In 2012 North
Tyneside Council (“the Authority”) adopted a code which sets out the conduct that is
expected of elected and co-opted members of the Authority when they are acting in that
capacity. The Code was developed regionally between Cumbria, Durham, Gateshead,
Newcastle, North Tyneside, North Yorkshire, Northumberland, South Tyneside and
Sunderland councils.
The Code applies whenever a member (a) conducts the business of the Authority (including
the business of their office as an elected member or co-opted member) or (b) acts, claims to
act or gives the impression they are acting as a representative of the Authority.
‘Co-opted member’ means any person who is a member of any committee or subcommittee of the Authority with a right to vote but who is not one of its elected members.
The Code is intended to be consistent with Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life, and
should be read in the light of those principles, namely that Authority Members will act with
selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.
The Monitoring Officer
The Monitoring Officer holds a statutory role and is responsible for promoting and
maintaining high standards of conduct and for reporting any actual or potential breaches of
the law and maladministration to the full Council and/or to the Cabinet (as set out in s.5(1) of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989).
The Monitoring Officer and their team administer the local arrangements for addressing
complaints made under the Code of Conduct.
The Monitoring Officer’s role includes the assessment and review of every complaint
received under the Code of Conduct. Following consultation with the Authority’s
Independent Persons and consideration of the initial comments of the subject member the
Monitoring Officer decides whether the complaint will be investigated. The decision will be

Page 157

based on whether the allegation, if proved, would constitute a failure to observe the Code of
Conduct and the application of the Authority’s adopted assessment criteria.
The Monitoring Officer may also consider that a complaint can be reasonably resolved
informally and will discuss this option with the complainant and subject member where
appropriate.
Independent Persons
The Authority has appointed three Independent Person(s) who are invited to attend all
meetings of the Standards Committee. The appointment of Independent Persons is
determined by a meeting of Full Council.
The Independent Person(s) must be consulted by the Authority before it makes a decision
on a matter that has been referred to it for investigation. They can also be consulted by the
Authority in respect of a code of conduct complaint at any other stage and can also be
consulted by a member or co-opted member of the Authority against whom a complaint has
been made.
The Independent Persons do not form part of a quorum but may be invited to attend where
considered appropriate by the Sub-Committee.
The Standards Committee
The Standards Committee is responsible for the promotion of ethical standards within the
Authority, helping to secure adherence to the Code, monitoring the operation of the Code,
promoting and reviewing the Whistleblowing Policy for Members, and conducting hearings
following investigation and determining complaints made under the Code.
The Standards Committee’s terms of reference are set out in Part 3, Paragraph 3.5(E) of
North Tyneside Council’s Constitution (the Constitution).
The Committee and its Sub-Committee conduct proceedings in accordance with:
-

Article 9 of the Constitution; and
the Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with complaints under the Code of
Conduct for Members

The Standards Sub-Committee
The Standards Sub-Committee receives and considers reports from Investigating Officers in
relation to allegations of breaches of the Code.
Where a Final Report from an Investigating Officer recommends a finding that there is no
breach of the Code, the Sub-Committee determines whether to accept the report; refer the
report back to the Investigating Officer if it is considered incomplete; or refer the report to a
hearing in accordance with the Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with complaints
under the Code of Conduct for Members.

Page 158

Where a Final Report from an Investigating Officer recommends a finding that there has
been a breach of the Code the Sub-Committee undertakes a hearing in accordance with the
Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with complaints under the Code.
The Standards Sub-Committee is responsible for granting dispensations to the Elected
Mayor, Members and Co-opted Members from requirements relating to interests set out in
the Code.
The Sub-Committee also has responsibility for undertaking such further functions of the
Standards Committee as may be delegated to the Sub-Committee in respect of the handling
of complaints against the elected Mayor, elected Members or Co-opted Members.
3.

Training for Standards Committee Members
Initial and refresher training for Members serving on the Standards Committee of the
Authority is important to ensure the probity and credibility of the Authority’s decision making
processes. Members are required to undertake basic training through the Authority’s
member induction programme, on election or re-election, before they can serve on the
Standards Committee. This training includes the duties and responsibilities of the
Standards Committee.
Other than in exceptional circumstances, as determined in each case by the Monitoring
Officer in consultation with the Mayor and Group Leaders, any Member who has not
undertaken the training will not continue to serve on the Committee.
Training is also provided for the Independent Persons appointed by the Authority in order to
ensure they are able to carry out their role.

4.

Standards Committee Membership 2020/21
In 2020/21 the Standards Committee comprised the following Members: Councillors Sean
Brockbank; Brian Burdis; Sandra Graham, Janet Hunter; Carl Johnson; Karen Lee (Deputy
Chair); Frank Lott; Bruce Pickard; and Martin Rankin (Chair).

5.

The Authority’s Independent Persons
The Authority has three Independent Persons who were appointed in July 2019 for a period
of four years. The Independent Persons are Mr George Clark, Ms Stella Gardner and Dr
Stuart Green.

6.

Committee and Sub-Committee Meetings in 2020/21
At the start of each year the Standards Committee usually agree its Work
Programme/Action Plan for the year, which is then monitored at meetings throughout the
year.
The Sub-committee did not agree a Work Programme/Action Plan for 2020/21, but
continued with the work programme from the previous year where possible. An update on
the Work Programme/Action Plans attached at Appendix 1 to this report and is commented
upon further in paragraph 10 below.

Page 159

The Standards Committee met on 2 occasions in 2020/21. The following meetings took
place virtually via Teams and were live streamed:



12 November 2020
8 April 2021

A meeting had been scheduled to take place on the 11 June 2020 but this meeting was
unable to go ahead due to Coronavirus restrictions as arrangements for virtual meetings
were not fully in place at this time within the authority.
The Standards Sub-Committee met on the 16 February 2021to consider some applications
for dispensations under the Code of Conduct.

7.

Complaints under the Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members
During 2020/21, 4 complaints of potential breaches of the Code of Conduct were received.
Table 1 below details how each complaint was dealt with on assessment and provides
details of the previous years to 2012/2013.
Table1
Local
Assessment
Decisions
2020/21
2019/2020
2018/2019
2017/2018
2016/2017
2015/2016
2014/2015
2013/2014
2012/2013

8.

No action

Informal
resolution

Referred for
Investigation

Total

3
13
10
6
4
15
13
0
11

1
4
3
2
1
0
1
0
5

0
0
2
1
0
0
10
1
1

4
17
15
9
5
15
24
1
17

Reviews of Initial Assessment Decisions
If a complainant is dissatisfied with an initial assessment decision they may seek a review.
Reviews are undertaken by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent
Persons and the Chair of the Standards Committee.
In 2020/21/ there were 0 requests for a review of the initial assessment decision.
In 2019/20 there were 0 requests for a review of the initial assessment decision.
In 2018/19 there were 4 requests for a review of the initial assessment decision. Following
the review, the original decision was upheld in each case.
In 2017/18 there were no requests for the review of the initial assessment decision.

Page 160

In 2016/17 there was1 request made for the review of the initial assessment decision.
Following the review, the original decision was upheld.
In 2015/16, 1 request was made for a review of the initial assessment. Following the
review, the original decision was upheld.
In 2014/15, 6 requests were made for a review of the initial assessment. Following the
reviews, the original decisions were upheld.
In 2012/13 and 2013/14 there were no requests for the review of the initial assessment
decision.
9.

Decisions on complaints following investigation
During 2020/21 there were no complaints referred for investigation.

10. Review of Standards Committee Work Programme and Action Plan for 2020/21
The Standards Committee’s Work Programme/Action Plan for 2020/21 is attached at
Annex 1. Matters of particular note are summarised below.
The Standards Committee met on 2 occasions during the year. The matters undertaken
include:
A. Annual Report 2019-20
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, a number of meetings from March 2020 did not go ahead,
including the Annual Council meeting scheduled for May 2020. Subsequently the
Standards Annual Report 2019-20 could not be finalised and agreed by Council as would
usually be the case. The Annual Report 2019-20 was agreed by the Standards Committee
at their first meeting of 2020-21 on 12 November 2020 and will be submitted to the Annual
Council meeting in May 2021, along with the Annual Report 2020-21.
B. Review of Code of Conduct and Local Arrangements
The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chair of the Standards Committee submitted a
response to the Committee for Standards in Public Life on how the Council is meeting the
best practice recommendations set out in their report on Government Ethical Standards.
The Local Government Association recently published Model Code of Conduct for Members
which it is recommending to all authorities as best practice. The Committee considered at its
meeting on 8 April 2020 began the process of comparing the model code against the
Authority’s current Code. The Committee will consider whether any additions or amendments
are necessary to the current Code. If such additions or amendments are required these will
be referred to Council for consideration and adoption where appropriate.

Page 161

C. Dialogue with Members and Officers
The Standards Committee has responsibility for the Authority’s statutory duty for promoting
and maintaining high standards of conduct by elected Members and co-opted Members of
the Council. During 2020/21 the Committee has been unable to continue with the
programme of invited guests, but consideration will be given to re-establishing this
programme during 2021-22.
D. Member Development – Monitoring and Recording Mandatory Training
Code of Conduct training sessions have been modified to include an element on social media,
given that an increasing number of complaints in recent years have been related to members
use of social media. Feedback from members had been positive, and there is an intention to
continue to include information on social media in future training sessions.
11. Conclusion
The Committee has met on a smaller number of occasions this year due to the Covid-19
pandemic. There have been a small number of complaints against councillors submitted
during the year.
The Committee’s aim is to continue to develop and maintain the Authority’s ethical
governance framework for the benefit of the Authority and ultimately local people. The
Committee is looking forward to the next year.

Page 162

Annex 1
The Standards Committee Work/Action Plan up to 31 March 2021
The Standards Committee is responsible for the Authority’s statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by
the Elected Mayor, Councillors and Co-opted Members. The Committee has worked to discharge this duty by undertaking the
following actions:
Action

Page 163

Why

By When

Progress

1. Monitor the operation of the
Members’ Code of Conduct
and undertake a review of
the Committee for
Standards in Public Life’s
report on Local Government
Ethical Standards to identify
where the Authority is
already meeting best
practice and where there
are areas where the
Authority’s arrangements
could be improved.

To ensure that it is operating
effectively

Ongoing

The review of the Members’
Code of Conduct is being
undertaken as a part of the
larger review of the
Authority’s Constitution.
Unfortunately this has not
progressed because of the
coronavirus restrictions but
remains a live matter to be
completed.

2. To review the Authority’s
Local Arrangements for
dealing with Complaints
under the Code of Conduct.

To ensure that the Authority’s
Local Arrangements meet the
requirements and expectations
of the Members and the
relevant legislation.

Ongoing

As above

3. To continue to develop an
ongoing programme of
meetings with invited

To develop a dialogue
between the Committee, and
members and appropriate

Ongoing

The Chair of the Planning
Committee was due to
attend the meeting of the

guests, including the
Officers relating to ethical
Elected Mayor, the Chief
governance and ethical
Executive, Senior
standards.
Leadership Team, Group
Leaders, the Chair and
Deputy Chair of Council and
the Chairs of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee and
the Planning Committee and
other Regulatory
Committees.

Committee in April 2020, but
the meeting was unable to
go ahead due to
Coronavirus restrictions.
This will be re-arranged for a
future meeting.

Page 164

4. Regional meetings of the
To provide an opportunity to
Chairs and Deputy Chairs of share knowledge and best
Standards Committees and practice.
Independent Persons be
arranged in consultation
with other regional
authorities

Ongoing

A regional training
event/seminar was arranged
by North Tyneside Council
and held at Quadrant on 17
February 2020. The theme
of the session was
‘Developments in
Governance’. The event
was well attended by
representatives of
authorities across the north
east and North Yorkshire.

5. To review training available
to all Council Members on
ethical governance, ethical
standards issues including

Ongoing

Recent training has included
an additional element on
social media. Following
positive feedback there is an

To ensure all members receive
information on ethical
governance, ethical standards
to minimise risk of unwitting

Page 165

arrangements with respect
to the Code of Conduct;
granting of dispensations,
the use of Social Media and
declaring interests
6. To seek the further
promotion with all Members
of the Authority’s e-learning
training on the use social
media.

breaches of the Code of
Conduct.

intention to continue to
include information on social
media in future training
sessions.

To assist the Authority to fulfil
is statutory duty to promote
and maintain high standards of
conduct.

Ongoing

As above

7. Continue production of
Annual Standards
Committee Report

Presentation of Annual Report
of the work of the Committee
during the previous 12 months.

By end of each
municipal year.

Completed.

8. To provide training to the
Independent Persons on
their role, this to include
invitations to relevant
training for Members.

To ensure that the Authority’s
Ongoing
Independent Persons
understand their role in relation
to ethical governance and the
Code of Conduct for Members
as well as the disciplinary
procedures for Statutory
Officers.

Ongoing

9. To update where necessary
and recirculate the pocket
guide to the Code of
Conduct and the
requirements in relation to
interests to all Members.

To assist Members in how the
Code of Conduct applies to
them.

Completed

December 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2

Standards Committee

Annual Report
2019/20

Page 167

Chair’s Foreword
As Chair of the Standards Committee, I am pleased to present the Committee’s Annual
Report, which outlines the work undertaken by the Committee in 2019/20.
The Standards Committee remains committed to working with and supporting Members of
the Council to ensure that they respect the Code of Conduct and uphold the standards
expected of those in public life.
To achieve this, the Committee has worked closely with the Council’s Monitoring Officer to
ensure that the principles of good governance and ethical standards remain central to the
business of the Authority and instil public confidence in those elected to public office.
I would like to thank all of the Committee Members, the Independent Persons and Officers
who I have worked with over this last year in relation to my role of Chair of the Standards
Committee.

Councillor M Rankin
Chair of the Standards Committee

Page 168

1. Standards Committee
1.

Introduction
At the end of each municipal year the Standards Committee submits for the consideration of
Council an annual report summarising the work the Committee has carried out during the
previous year. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and the subsequent lockdown the
report’s submission to the final Standard Committee meeting of the 2019/20 municipal year
did not happen.
This report comprises the Annual Review covering the period April 2019 to March 2020
together with background information regarding the standards regime established within
North Tyneside Council. All references to 2019/20 in the report refer to this time period.

2.

Background Information
The Code of Conduct for Elected Members and Co-opted Members (‘the Code’ or ‘The
Code of Conduct’)
The Localism Act 2011 requires the Authority to have a Code of Conduct. In 2012 North
Tyneside Council (“the Authority”) adopted a code which sets out the conduct that is
expected of elected and co-opted members of the Authority when they are acting in that
capacity. The Code was developed regionally between Cumbria, Durham, Gateshead,
Newcastle, North Tyneside, North Yorkshire, Northumberland, South Tyneside and
Sunderland councils.
The Code applies whenever a member (a) conducts the business of the Authority (including
the business of their office as an elected member or co-opted member) or (b) acts, claims to
act or gives the impression they are acting as a representative of the Authority.
‘Co-opted member’ means any person who is a member of any committee or subcommittee of the Authority with a right to vote but who is not one of its elected members.
The Code is intended to be consistent with Nolan’s Seven Principles of Public Life, and
should be read in the light of those principles, namely that Authority Members will act with
selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.
The Monitoring Officer
The Monitoring Officer holds a statutory role and is responsible for promoting and
maintaining high standards of conduct and for reporting any actual or potential breaches of
the law and maladministration to the full Council and/or to the Cabinet (as set out in s.5(1) of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989).
The Monitoring Officer and their team administer the local arrangements for addressing
complaints made under the Code of Conduct.
The Monitoring Officer’s role includes the assessment and review of every complaint
received under the Code of Conduct. Following consultation with the Authority’s

Page 169

Independent Persons and consideration of the initial comments of the subject member the
Monitoring Officer decides whether the complaint will be investigated. The decision will be
based on whether the allegation, if proved, would constitute a failure to observe the Code of
Conduct and the application of the Authority’s adopted assessment criteria.
The Monitoring Officer may also consider that a complaint can be reasonably resolved
informally and will discuss this option with the complainant and subject member where
appropriate.
Independent Persons
The Authority has appointed three Independent Person(s) who are invited to attend all
meetings of the Standards Committee. The appointment of Independent Persons is
determined by a meeting of Full Council.
The Independent Person(s) must be consulted by the Authority before it makes a decision
on a matter that has been referred to it for investigation. They can also be consulted by the
Authority in respect of a code of conduct complaint at any other stage and can also be
consulted by a member or co-opted member of the Authority against whom a complaint has
been made.
The Independent Persons do not form part of a quorum but may be invited to attend where
considered appropriate by the Sub-Committee.
The Standards Committee
The Standards Committee is responsible for the promotion of ethical standards within the
Authority, helping to secure adherence to the Code, monitoring the operation of the Code,
promoting and reviewing the Whistleblowing Policy for Members, and conducting hearings
following investigation and determining complaints made under the Code.
The Standards Committee’s terms of reference are set out in Part 3, Paragraph 3.5(E) of
North Tyneside Council’s Constitution (the Constitution).
The Committee and its Sub-Committee conduct proceedings in accordance with:
-

Article 9 of the Constitution; and
the Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with complaints under the Code of
Conduct for Members

The Standards Sub-Committee
The Standards Sub-Committee receives and considers reports from Investigating Officers in
relation to allegations of breaches of the Code.
Where a Final Report from an Investigating Officer recommends a finding that there is no
breach of the Code, the Sub-Committee determines whether to accept the report; refer the
report back to the Investigating Officer if it is considered incomplete; or refer the report to a
hearing in accordance with the Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with complaints
under the Code of Conduct for Members.

Page 170

Where a Final Report from an Investigating Officer recommends a finding that there has
been a breach of the Code the Sub-Committee undertakes a hearing in accordance with the
Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with complaints under the Code.
The Standards Sub-Committee is responsible for granting dispensations to the Elected
Mayor, Members and Co-opted Members from requirements relating to interests set out in
the Code.
The Sub-Committee also has responsibility for undertaking such further functions of the
Standards Committee as may be delegated to the Sub-Committee in respect of the handling
of complaints against the elected Mayor, elected Members or Co-opted Members.
3.

Training for Standards Committee Members
Initial and refresher training for Members serving on the Standards Committee of the
Authority is important to ensure the probity and credibility of the Authority’s decision making
processes. Members are required to undertake basic training through the Authority’s
member induction programme, on election or re-election, before they can serve on the
Standards Committee. This training includes the duties and responsibilities of the
Standards Committee.
Other than in exceptional circumstances, as determined in each case by the Monitoring
Officer in consultation with the Mayor and Group Leaders, any Member who has not
undertaken the training will not continue to serve on the Committee.
Training is also provided for the Independent Persons appointed by the Authority in order to
ensure they are able to carry out their role.

4.

Standards Committee Membership 2019/20
In 2019/20 the Standards Committee comprised the following Members: Councillors Sean
Brockbank; Brian Burdis; Sandra Graham, Janet Hunter; Carl Johnson; Karen Lee (Deputy
Chair); Frank Lott; Bruce Pickard; and Martin Rankin (Chair).

5.

The Authority’s Independent Persons
The Authority has three Independent Persons who were appointed in July 2019 for a period
of four years. The Independent Persons are Mr George Clark, Ms Stella Gardner and Dr
Stuart Green.

6.

Committee and Sub-Committee Meetings in 2019/20
At the start of each year the Standards Committee agree its Work Programme/Action Plan
for the year, which is then monitored at meetings throughout the year.
The Work Programme/Action Plan for 2019/20 is attached at Appendix 1 to this report and
is commented upon further in paragraph 10 below.
The Standards Committee met on 2 occasions in 2019/20. The following meetings took
place:

Page 171




11 July 2019
14 November 2019

A further meeting was scheduled to take place on the 9 April 2020 but this meeting was
unable to go ahead due to Coronavirus restrictions.
The Sub-Committee met on the 19 December 2019 to consider applications for
dispensations under the Code of Conduct.
The Sub-committee also met on 5 March 2020 to consider an investigation report into a
complaint where no breach of the code was found.
7.

Complaints under the Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members
During 2019/20, 17 complaints of potential breaches of the Code of Conduct were received.
Table 1 below details how each complaint was dealt with on assessment and provides
details of the previous years to 2012/2013.
Table1
Local
Assessment
Decisions
2019/2020
2018/2019
2017/2018
2016/2017
2015/2016
2014/2015
2013/2014
2012/2013

8.

No action

Informal
resolution

Referred for
Investigation

Total

13
10
6
4
15
13
0
11

4
3
2
1
0
1
0
5

0
2
1
0
0
10
1
1

17
15
9
5
15
24
1
17

Reviews of Initial Assessment Decisions
If a complainant is dissatisfied with an initial assessment decision they may seek a review.
Reviews are undertaken by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent
Persons and the Chair of the Standards Committee.
In 2019/20 there were 0 requests for a review of the initial assessment decision.
In 2018/19 there were 4 requests for a review of the initial assessment decision. Following
the review, the original decision was upheld in each case.
In 2017/18 there were no requests for the review of the initial assessment decision.
In 2016/17 there was1 request made for the review of the initial assessment decision.
Following the review, the original decision was upheld.

Page 172

In 2015/16, 1 request was made for a review of the initial assessment. Following the
review, the original decision was upheld.
In 2014/15, 6 requests were made for a review of the initial assessment. Following the
reviews, the original decisions were upheld.
In 2012/13 and 2013/14 there were no requests for the review of the initial assessment
decision.
9.

Decisions on complaints following investigation
During 2019/20 there were no complaints referred for investigation.
The Sub-committee considered one investigation report that related to a complaint referred
for investigation in 2018/19. In that case the committee accepted the finding of the
Investigation Officer that no breach of the Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted
Members had occurred.

10. Review of Standards Committee Work Programme and Action Plan for 2019/20
The Standards Committee’s Work Programme/Action Plan for 2019/20 is attached at
Annex 1. Matters of particular note are summarised below.
The Standards Committee met on 2 occasions during the year. At each meeting the
Committee monitored its Action Plan. The matters undertaken include:
A. Review of Code of Conduct and Local Arrangements
The Standards Committee has been advised that a review of the constitution is underway and
this will include reviewing the code of conduct for Members. The review will incorporate
consideration of the recommendations arising from the review of the Committee for Standards
in Public Life’s report on Government Ethical Standards. It will identify where the Authority is
already meeting best practice, and highlight any areas where arrangements could be
improved. Any suggested changes will be reported to the Standards Committee before being
reported to the Constitution Task Group and Full Council for agreement. Unfortunately this
has not progressed because of the coronavirus restrictions but remains a live matter to be
completed.
It was also noted that the Monitoring Officer is considering the Authority’s Local Arrangements
for dealing with Complaints under the Code of Conduct, with a view to identifying ways to filter
out frivolous complaints earlier in the process to reduce the burden on officer time. This could
involve strengthening the powers of the Monitoring Officer as part of the initial assessment
process. Any changes would be developed in consultation with the Standards Committee.
A Pocket Guide to the Code of Conduct for Members’ and the requirements in relation to
interests was developed and approved by the Standards Committee for circulation to all
Members’ to assist in how the Code applied to them.

Page 173

B. Dialogue with Members and Officers
The Standards Committee has responsibility for the Authority’s statutory duty for promoting
and maintaining high standards of conduct by elected Members and co-opted Members of
the Council. During 2019/20 invited guests included the Chair of Planning Committee,
Councillor F Lott , who was due to give his perspective on ethical governance and
standards in relation to regulatory committees following recent changes to training for
members of the Planning Committee at the April meeting. Cllr Lott will be invited to give his
perspective at a future meeting of the Committee.
C. Member Development – Monitoring and Recording Mandatory Training
The Committee has received information on the monitoring and recording of mandatory
training. It was noted that around two thirds of members had completed general mandatory
training, and most members had completed the training required to sit on regulatory
committees where this applies to them. It was noted that a structured programme of member
training for Audit Committee members is in development following a review of the committee’s
arrangements.
Members highlighted some improvements that could be implemented, including the provision
of one-to-one support to members, as required, to access e-learning modules. It was also
agreed that group leaders should be provided with information on members with outstanding
mandatory training requirements, and be asked to encourage all members to complete all
training by the end of February 2020.
It was noted that a Code of Conduct training session had been held for members in October
2019. This had been modified to include an element on social media, given that an
increasing number of complaints received are related to members use of social media.
Feedback from members had been positive, and there is an intention to continue to include
information on social media in future training sessions.
D. Regional Training Event
A regional training event/seminar was arranged by North Tyneside Council and held at
Quadrant on 17 February 2020. The theme of the session was ‘Developments in
Governance’. The seminar was aimed at Chairs/Deputy Chairs of Standards Committees,
Independent Persons, Monitoring Officers and their Deputies, and Governance Solicitors.
The seminar was led by Olwen Brown of Anthony Collins Solicitors LLP, who also presented
an update on developments in Governance and Standards issues. The event was well
attended and received positive feedback.

11. Conclusion
The Committee continues to be busy and, as this report demonstrates, has dealt with a
variety of matters in the past year. The Committee’s aim is to continue to develop and
maintain the Authority’s ethical governance framework for the benefit of the Authority and
ultimately local people. The Committee is looking forward to the next year.

Page 174

Annex 1
The Standards Committee Work/Action Plan up to 31 March 2020
This Action Plan was monitored by the Committee at each meeting.
The Standards Committee is responsible for the Authority’s statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by
the Elected Mayor, Councillors and Co-opted Members. The Committee has worked to discharge this duty by undertaking the
following actions:
Action

Page 175

Why

By When

Progress

1. Monitor the operation of the
Members’ Code of Conduct
and undertake a review of
the Committee for
Standards in Public Life’s
report on Local Government
Ethical Standards to identify
where the Authority is
already meeting best
practice and where there
are areas where the
Authority’s arrangements
could be improved.

To ensure that it is operating
effectively

Ongoing

The review of the Members’
Code of Conduct is being
undertaken as a part of the
larger review of the
Authority’s Constitution.
Unfortunately this has not
progressed because of the
coronavirus restrictions but
remains a live matter to be
completed.

2. To review the Authority’s
Local Arrangements for
dealing with Complaints
under the Code of Conduct.

To ensure that the Authority’s
Local Arrangements meet the
requirements and expectations
of the Members and the
relevant legislation.

Ongoing

As above

Page 176

3. To continue to develop an
ongoing programme of
meetings with invited
guests, including the
Elected Mayor, the Chief
Executive, Senior
Leadership Team, Group
Leaders, the Chair and
Deputy Chair of Council and
the Chairs of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee and
the Planning Committee and
other Regulatory
Committees.

To develop a dialogue
between the Committee, and
members and appropriate
Officers relating to ethical
governance and ethical
standards.

4. Regional meetings of the
To provide an opportunity to
Chairs and Deputy Chairs of share knowledge and best
Standards Committees and practice.
Independent Persons be
arranged in consultation
with other regional
authorities

Ongoing

The Chair of the Planning
Committee was due to
attend the meeting of the
Committee in April but the
meeting was unable to go
ahead due to Coronavirus
restrictions. This will be rearranged for a future
meeting.

Ongoing

A regional training
event/seminar was arranged
by North Tyneside Council
and held at Quadrant on 17
February 2020. The theme
of the session was
‘Developments in
Governance’. The event
was well attended by
representatives of
authorities across the north
east and North Yorkshire.

Page 177

5. To review training available
to all Council Members on
ethical governance, ethical
standards issues including
arrangements with respect
to the Code of Conduct;
granting of dispensations,
the use of Social Media and
declaring interests

To ensure all members receive
information on ethical
governance, ethical standards
to minimise risk of unwitting
breaches of the Code of
Conduct.

Ongoing

6. To seek the further
promotion with all Members
of the Authority’s e-learning
training on the use social
media.

To assist the Authority to fulfil
is statutory duty to promote
and maintain high standards of
conduct.

Ongoing

7. Continue production of
Annual Standards
Committee Report

Presentation of Annual Report
of the work of the Committee
during the previous 12 months.

By end of each
municipal year.

8. To provide training to the
Independent Persons on
their role, this to include
invitations to relevant
training for Members.

To ensure that the Authority’s
Ongoing
Independent Persons
understand their role in relation
to ethical governance and the
Code of Conduct for Members
as well as the disciplinary
procedures for Statutory
Officers.

Code of Conduct training
was held for members in
October 2019. This included
an additional element on
social media. Following
positive feedback there is an
intention to continue to
include information on social
media in future training
sessions.
As above

Completed.

Ongoing

9. To update where necessary
and recirculate the pocket
guide to the Code of
Conduct and the
requirements in relation to
interests to all Members.

To assist Members in how the
Code of Conduct applies to
them.

December 2019

Completed.

Page 178

